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Stretched out along a ridge between Bryant Creek and the Slate River,
Buckingham Court House survives as a well preserved Piedmont courthouse
community with a population of approximately two hundred eighteen people.
The village extends for a little more than a half mile on either side of
Route 60 with the courthouse square located near the center. The court
house itself is a two-story temple-form building fronted by a pedimented
tetrastyle Doric portico. This court house replaces the earlier one of
similar appearance, designed by Thomas Jefferson but destroyed by fire.
Several of the column capitals and bases from Jefferson's court house survive
on the grounds in front of the present building., On the west side of the
court house is a ome-story twentieth century office building, and on the
east is the one-story late-nineteenth century clerk's office with later
additions. Behind is the former jall house.

Unfortunately the square in front of the court house has been marred by the
major highway cutting through it, 'but it still possesses the Confederate
monument in the center and a fine collection of nineteenth century buildings
on the north side. Most notable of these is the former Buckingham Tavern,
an early-nineteenth century two-story brick structure with two entrances.

On the west side of the square is the interesting former Buckingham Inn, a
rambling early-nineteenth century brick building in the shape of an H,
Lining the highway leading into the square from the east is a fine variety
of nineteenth century structures including the Leach House, the Presbyterian
manse, the Masonic Hall, a brick house with later Italianate decoration
called West View, and a long frame house which was formerly a tavern. To
the west of the court house lining the north side of the highway are several
distinguished, early-nineteenth century, dwellings such as Rose Terrace with
its especially fine Flemish bond brickwork. Opposite Rose Terrace is the
Trinity Presbyterian Church, a notabple Roman Revival structure built girca
1830, whose temple-form and portico obviously reflected Jefferson's court
house, It is interesting that nearly every building in Buckingham is covered

with the slate shingles for which the county has become so famous.

TR | .
Buckingham Court House has lost several of its significant structures over
the years, but enough remains to impart a convincing picture of an early-
nineteenth century courthouse village. The atmosphere of the village will
be greatly enhanced if the proposed by-pass is built around it, giving some
relief from the heavy traffic which is currently channeled through Buckinghan
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Formed in 1761 from the southern portion of Albemarle County, it is
believed by some that Buckingham County Was ‘hamed after a tract of land

in the region known by that name. More probably the county took its name
directly from the English shire. The first court house, thought to have
been a simple wooden building, was located on the Slate River just west

of the present village. In 1818 the General Assembly established a town
near the court house and gave it the name of Maysville since it was located
on land belonging to Thomas May. Three years later it was decided to

erect a new court house on higher ground within the village. Although

it was intended that the new building be modeled after Albemarle Court
House, one of the members of the building committee, Charles Yancey, wrote
to Thomas Jefferson requesting a set of plans. The plans which Jefferson
submitted, calling for a templeform structure with portico, were eventually
adopted, and construction of the bullding began soon afterwards.

Completed in 1823, Jefférson's building 4s ‘well as dll the court records '
were completely destroyed by a fire set by an incendlary in 1869 The ‘new
tourt house, arected on the site of the' 'first, i§ similar in size and .~ '
general style to its predecessor. Even though Jefferson s architecturally
significant court house has been lost; the présent stfucture blends v
appropriately into what has survived as a well preserved, picturesque
Virginia courthouse village. WNow referred to as Buckingham Court House,
the village retains its complex of court buildings, as well as several
taverns and a number of notable early-nineteenth century dwellings. The
design of the circa 1830 Trinity Presbyterian Church with its Doric portice
was apparently inspired by Jefferson's court house. Both the church and
the other early brick structures in the town exhibit unusually fine
workmanship in their brickwork, a characteristic of both Jefferson-designed
and Jefferson-inspired bulldings.

During the War Between the States nearly every Buckingham family sent its
men to war. The many killed in the conflict are honored by the obelisk in
the courthouse square. When the fighting ended in adjacent Appomattox
County, General Robert E. Lee returned to Richmond by way of Buckingham
Court House. Tradition has it that Lee refused comfortable accommodations
in Buckingham Court House following the surrender in order to pitch his
tent for the last time among his men who were encamped just outside the
town.
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